
Please ask for:
Lisa Young
Direct dial:
(023) 9254 5340
Fax:
(023) 9254 5587
E-mail:
lisa.young@gosport.gov.uk

28 January 2019

S U M M O N S

MEETING: Policy and Organisation Board
DATE: 5 February 2019
TIME:: 6.00 pm
PLACE: Council Chamber
Democratic Services contact: Lisa Young

MICHAEL LAWTHER
BOROUGH SOLICITOR

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

The Mayor (Councillor Mrs Furlong (ex-Officio))
Councillor Hook (Chairman)

Councillor Burgess (Vice Chairman) 

Councillor Bateman
Councillor Carter
Councillor Chegwyn
Councillor Mrs Cully
Councillor Foster-Reed

Councillor Hicks
Councillor Hylands
Councillor Jessop
Councillor Murphy
Councillor Pepper
Councillor Philpott

Public Document Pack



FIRE PRECAUTIONS

(To be read by the Mayor if members of the public are present)

In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building.

IMPORTANT NOTICE:

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request.

If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page).

NOTE:

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak. 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting.

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 
consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded. 



Policy and Organisation Board
5 February 2019

AGENDA

RECOMMENDED 
MINUTE FORMAT

1.  APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

All Members are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting.

3.  MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD HELD ON 21 
NOVEMBER 2018 (Pages 1 - 4)

4.  DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

(NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Friday,1 February 2019.  The total 
time for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not 
exceed 10 minutes).

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

(NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from Members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Friday, 
1 February 2019).

6.  FORMER COUNCILLOR PETER EDGAR MBE - HONORARY 
FREEMAN OF THE BOROUGH (Pages 5 - 8)

To set out proposals for Former Councillor Peter Edgar MBE to be 
conferred the Title of Honorary Freeman of the Borough.

David Williams

7.  BUSINESS RATES RETAIL DISCOUNT (Pages 9 - 22) Part II

The purpose of the report is to consider the proposed additions to 
the Council’s Discretionary Rate Relief Policy relating to the Retail 
Discount announced in the Autumn Budget by the Government.

Maggie Gibbins



Policy and Organisation Board
5 February 2019

8.  NEW POST OF NEIGHBOURHOOD OPERATIONS MANAGER 
(Pages 23 - 28)

Part II

The purpose of this report is to seek members’ approval to create a 
new post of Neighbourhood Operations Manager

Julie Smith 

9.  TUC DYING TO WORK CHARTER (Pages 29 – 34) Part II 

The purpose of the report is to consider whether Gosport 
Council should sign up to the TUC 'Dying to Work' charter and 
what additional actions, if any, it would need to carry out to 
comply with the charter. 

Jon Bell 

10.  DISABILITY CONFIDENT INITIATIVE (Pages 35 – 52) Part II 

The purpose of this report is to advise P&O Board  about the 
Disability Confident standard, and seek members' approval to 
request accreditation under the scheme.

Jon Bell 

11.  ANY OTHER ITEMS 



Policy and Organisation Board
21 November 2018

1

A MEETING OF THE POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD
WAS HELD ON 21 NOVEMBER 2018

Councillors Bateman, Burgess, Chegwyn, Mrs Cully, Foster-Reed, Hicks, Hook, Mrs Hook 
(Substituting for Carter) Hylands, Jessop, Pepper, Philpott and Scard (Substituting for 
Murphy)

33. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

Apologies for non attendance were received from Councillors Carter and Murphy. 

34. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none. 

35. MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD HELD ON 26 SEPTEMBER 2018 
AND THE EXTRAORDINARY MEETING HELD ON THE 15 OCTOBER 2018. 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meetings of the Board held on  26 September 2018 
and the extraordinary meeting held on 15 October 2018 be signed as true and correct 
records.

36. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

There were none. 

37. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

There were none. 

38. CITIZENS ADVICE GOSPORT PRESENTATION 

Members welcomed Valerie Kelly and Richard Mackey from Citizens Advice Gosport. 

They advised the Board of their work over the previous year and of the forthcoming 
projects. 

Members welcomed the work of Citizens Advice Gosport and thanked the volunteers for 
their valuable contribution to the Borough. 

39. PROPOSALS FOR THE REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING 
PLACES 

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Electoral Services advising the Board 
of the Council’s statutory responsibilities for reviewing UK Parliamentary Polling Districts 
and Polling Places and to agree the recommendations as set out in this report.

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3



Policy and Organisation Board
21 November 2018

2

It was confirmed to the Board that the polling district boundaries could not be moved as part 
of the review and that only the boundaries of polling districts and the locations of polling 
places would be considered. 

RESOLVED: That; 
1. The creation of an Electoral Task and Finish Group to carry out the formal review of 

Gosport’s UK Parliamentary Polling Districts and Polling Places be approved.
2. The terms of reference for the Electoral Task and Finish Group as outlined within the 

report be agreed.
3. The  timetable of the review as outline within the report be agreed.
4. To Councillors Burgess, Hook, Chegwyn, Hylands and Mrs Cully be nominated to the 

Electoral Task and Finish Group.  

40. STREETSCENE REVIEW 

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Streetscene updating members on the 
outcome of the review of the Streetscene Service and seek members' approval for a new 
structure.

Members welcomed the proposal to have better enforcement provision within the Borough 
and welcomed the drive to better educate and increase recycling rates. 

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that there was no longer a 
requirement for a groundsman at match days at Gosport Borough Football Club as it was 
now the responsibility of the Club. 

The Board was advised that the increased income from parking penalties had been 
estimated based on the increase numbers of enforcement officers and that the zonal 
patrolling of the officers would ensure that more checks would be made.

The Board was advised that the Windsor report had led to a change in legislation that 
meant the Police were no longer able to employ a traffic warden for on street parking. The 
Board was advised that until on street parking was decriminalised by Hampshire County 
Council, the responsibility for enforcement of on street parking would lie with the police. 

The Board was advised that Hampshire County Council was investigating the possibility of 
decriminalising on street parking in the County and although this would take some time, 
Gosport Borough Council would be in a good position to take on the enforcement at a 
service level agreement, if the zonal patrolling was approved. 

The Board was advised that from 30th November 2018 it would be the responsibility of the 
Police to manage and enforce on street parking and that and that it was important that this 
was the message given to the public. Powers were being introduced to allow PCSO’s to 
enforce parking matters. 

Members recognised the important work undertaken by groups such as the Gosport 
Wombles which helped in keeping the Borough tidy. It was reiterated that incidences of 
vandalism and littering were caused by people who lacked Civic pride or a desire to look 
after where they lived. The Board was advised that extended working hours would help to 
support increased patrols of the areas being targeted by vandals. 



Policy and Organisation Board
21 November 2018

3

Members welcomed the inclusion of an apprentice in the Countryside section, recognising 
the increased use of the Alver Valley. 

The Board welcomed that education with regard to recycling and reduction of waste would 
be introduced and recognised the importance of education young people, as it was often 
the young people that provided the best education to their parents.

It was reiterated that the Borough Council would not have jurisdiction with regard to on 
street parking unless it was decriminalised by the County Council. 

RESOLVED: That the Board 

A) Note the outcome of the review as set out in the sections below.

B) Approve the amalgamation of the following posts:

 5No. Enforcement Officers
 2No. Contract Inspectors (1No. Parks and Landscaping and 1No. Waste and Cleansing).

The overall net result is the deletion of the two Contract Inspector posts to be relocated into 
the Enforcement Team. The Enforcement Team will then incorporate the duties and 
responsibilities of the Contract Inspector posts.

That the Board approves 
 an additional Senior Enforcement Officer post.
 the creation of 2No. Enforcement Officer posts to allow the service to provide 

sufficient coverage to meet the demand across all the operational hours of the 
service

 the creation of 2No. Waste Advisors posts to help drive the recycling agenda and 
reduce overall waste disposal costs.

 the creation of 1No. Business Support Manager in principal, subject to the 
identification of savings within the budget process. This post is required to 
manage the Business Support Team and provide direct support to the Head of 
Streetscene. 

  the creation of 1No. Countryside Apprentice post.
 that the Streetscene section is restructured within the portfolio of the Deputy 

Chief Executives Unit and that the Head of Streetscene direct reports to the 
Deputy Chief Executive.

 

41. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

CHAIRMAN



Policy and Organisation Board
21 November 2018

4

Concluded at 7.12 pm



Board/Committee: POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD
Date of Meeting: 5th February 2019
Title: FORMER COUNCILLOR PETER EDGAR MBE – 

HONORARY FREEMAN OF THE BOROUGH
Author: CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Status: FOR RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL

Purpose

To set out proposals for Former Councillor Peter Edgar MBE to be 
conferred the Title of Honorary Freeman of the Borough.

Recommendation

It is recommended that, in accordance with Section 249(5) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, and in recognition of his eminent 
services to the people and Borough of Gosport over many years, the 
Board request that an Extraordinary Council Meeting be called, to 
confer the Title of Honorary Freeman of the Borough to Peter Edgar 
MBE.

1 Background

1.1 Councillor Hook has requested that the Council consider appointing 
former Councillor Peter Edgar MBE as an Honorary Freeman. 

1.2 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution (Part 2, Chapter 4, 
Paragraph 4.02(j)) a decision to confer the Title of Honorary Freeman 
of the Borough is reserved to full Council.

2 Proposal for the Award of the Freeman Honour

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Councillor Hook has kindly provided the following statement in 
support of the proposal:

Over the past 40 years Peter Edgar has served the residents of 
Gosport with distinction. 

He was first elected to the Council in 1979, representing Bridgemary 
Ward where he served for a year. Peter returned to the Council when 
elected to represent Alverstoke Ward in 1983. He moved to represent 
Anglsey Ward in 1995 before returning to Alverstoke in 2002 until his 
retirement in 2018. 

Peter gave a total of 36 years’ service to the Borough Council, 35 of 

Agenda Item 6



2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

those serving the residents of Alverstoke and Anglesey. 

In addition, Peter also serves Leesland and Town Division as a 
Hampshire County Councillor from 2005 to date

Peter served on many Boards and Committees during his times as a 
Councillor, and was the Leader of the Council from 1999-2001 and 
served as Chairman of the Policy and Organisation Board. 

He was Mayor of the Borough in 1997-1998 with his wife Pat by his 
side as Mayoress and were regular attendees at community events 
within Alverstoke and the wider Borough.  

Peter supported his community and the young people of the Borough 
further as a teacher and maintained his interest and commitment to 
education as a County Councillor and with involvement in the 
management of both Gosport Borough Football and Cricket Clubs. 

Peter was also fundamental in the campaign to try and save Haslar 
Hospital. Former Councillor Peter Edgar is a man of great distinction 
who has consistently given his time freely in support of others over a 
long period of time; his contribution to the local community and to 
charities is invaluable. He is held in very high esteem by all who 
come into contact with him.

3. Risk Assessment

3.1 There are no business risks associated with this proposal.

4 Financial Implications

4.1 There are no significant costs associated with this proposal.

5 Conclusion

5.1 Peter Edgar MBE  has worked tirelessly for the people of the 
Borough of Gosport over the years and it is appropriate that the 
Council consider the proposal that he be conferred the Title of 
Honorary Freeman of the Borough.

Financial Services comments: There are no significant costs associated 
with this proposal.

Legal Services comments: Contained within the Report
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

There are no Service Plan implications.

Corporate Plan: There are no Corporate Plan issues.
Risk Assessment: There are no business risks associated 

with this proposal.
Background papers: None.



Appendices/Enclosures: None.
Report author/ Lead Officer: David Williams, Chief Executive



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA NO

GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO: Policy and Organisation 
Board

DATE OF MEETING: 5th February 2019
TITLE: Business Rates Retail 

Discount
AUTHOR: Chris Ward – Borough 

Treasurer

STATUS: For Decision

SUMMARY OF REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS   

Purpose

The purpose of the report is to consider the proposed additions to the Council’s 
Discretionary Rate Relief Policy relating to the Retail Discount announced in the 
Autumn Budget by the Government.

RECOMMENDATION 

The Board is requested to consider and approve:-

(i)  The Discretionary Rate Relief Policy relating to Retail Discount as detailed in 
Appendix A.

1. Background

1.1 Section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 as amended permits the 
billing authority to grant discretionary rate relief.

1.2 The Government announced in the Budget on 29 October 2018 that it will 
provide a business rates Retail Discount scheme for occupied retail properties 
with a rateable value of less than £51,000 in each of the years 2019-20 and 
2020-21. The value of discount should be one third of the bill, and must be 
applied after mandatory reliefs and other discretionary reliefs funded by section 
31 grants have been applied. 

1.3 As this is a measure for 2019-20 and 2020-21 only, the Government is not       
changing the legislation around the reliefs available to properties. Instead the 
Government will, in line with the eligibility criteria set out in the guidance, 

Agenda Item 7



reimburse local authorities that use their discretionary relief powers, introduced 
by the Localism Act (under section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1988, as amended) to grant relief. 

1.4 Central government will fully reimburse local authorities for the loss of Business 
Rates income to the Council (local share) of the discretionary relief (using a 
grant under section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003). 

2. Report

2.1 GBC’s current policy does not allow for the granting of the Retail Discount at 
present. It is intended to help encourage a thriving and diverse town centre by 
providing additional temporary business rate support to shops, restaurants, 
cafes and drinking establishments.   (Please refer to Appendix A for qualifying 
criteria).

2.2 There are no financial implications for the Council as the discount will be fully 
funded by Central Government.

2.3 It is estimated that about 200 businesses will benefit (which amounts to 78% of 
all retail properties) by an average of £2,000.

3. Risk Assessment

3.1 Failure to add Retail Discount to the Discretionary Rate Relief Policy for 
2019/20 and 2020/21 will prevent the Council from granting the relief to the 
detriment of those local businesses that would otherwise have been eligible.

4. Conclusion

4.1 GBC’s current policy does not allow for the granting of this temporary discount 
at present. There are no financial implications for the authority as it is to be fully 
funded by Central Government. The discount is intended to assist local 
businesses and boost the local economy, which will complement existing 
policies and is therefore recommended for approval.

Financial Implications: As detailed in report
Legal Implications: none
Crime and Disorder: none
Equality and Diversity: Changes fairly applied to those 

that meet the criteria 
Equality Impact Assessments None – Central Government 

Criteria used
Service Improvement Plan: N/A
Corporate Plan: Enabling Local businesses to be 

granted the additional business 



rate reliefs identified within the 
report will assist the Strategic 
Priority relating to Prosperity.

Risk Assessment: Please see Section 3 of the 
report

Background papers: MCHLG Business Rates – Retail 
Guidance

Appendices:
Appendix 1 Conditions for granting Retail 

Discount

Report Author/Lead Officer Chris Ward



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

Conditions for granting Retail Discount for  financial years 2019-20 and 
2020-21

i) Properties (hereditaments) must be occupied and have a rateable 
value of less than £51,000 and are being wholly or mainly used as 
shops, restaurants, cafes and drinking establishments.

ii) Shops, restaurants, cafes and drinking establishments are properties 
being used for the sale of goods to visiting members of the public 
examples of which are: shops (such as: florist, bakers, butchers, 
grocers, greengrocers, jewellers, stationers, off licence, chemists, 
newsagents, hardware stores, supermarkets, etc.), charity shops, 
opticians, Post Offices, furnishing shops/display rooms (such as: carpet 
shops, double glazing, garage doors),  car/caravan show rooms, 
second hard car lots, markets, petrol stations , garden centres, art 
galleries (where art is for sale/hire), hair and beauty services (such as: 
hairdressers, nail bars, beauty salons, tanning shops, etc.), shoe 
repairs/key cutting, travel agents, ticket offices e.g. for theatre, dry 
cleaners, launderettes, PC/TV/domestic appliance repair, funeral 
directors, photo processing, DVD/video rentals, tool hire, car hire, 
restaurants, takeaways sandwich shops, coffee shops, pubs, bars 

The list above is not exhaustive and properties broadly similar in nature to 
those listed above may be eligible for the relief.

iii) There must be reasonable access to visiting members of the public.

iv) Properties used for providing financial, medical, professional and other  
services to visiting members of the public such as banks, building 
societies, cash points, bureau de change, betting shops, pawn brokers, 
pay day lenders, vets, dentists, doctors, osteopaths, chiropractors, 
physiotherapy, solicitors, accountants, insurance agents, financial 
advisors, tutors, estate agents, letting agents, employment agencies, 
Post Office sorting offices, cinemas, theatres, museums, nightclubs, 
sports facilities including gyms and car repairers/MOT’s or broadly 
similar in nature to those listed above will not be eligible.

v) Any discount awarded will be applied against the net bill after all other 
reliefs and calculated on a daily basis (except for a locally funded relief, 
sometimes referred to as a hardship fund, under section 47 this is must 
be applied after the Retail Discount. 

vi) The following formula should be used to determine the amount of relief 
to be granted for a chargeable day for particular hereditament in the 
financial year 2019-20: 

Amount of relief to be granted = V/3  where 
 

V is the daily charge for the hereditament for the chargeable day after the 
application of any mandatory relief and any other discretionary reliefs, 



Appendix A 

excluding those where local authorities have used their discretionary relief 
powers introduced by the Localism Act which are not funded by section 31 
grants. 

This should be calculated ignoring any prior year adjustments in liabilities 
which fall to be liable on the day. 

Ratepayers that occupy more than one property will be entitled to relief for 
each of their eligible properties, subject to State Aid De Minimis limits. 

vii) This relief is subject to State Aid De Minimus Regulations and where the    
awarding of the relief may breach these regulations, relief will not be granted.  
All applicants must complete a State Aid declaration.

viii) Properties in an Enterprise Zone that do not qualify for Enterprise Zone relief 
are eligible to apply for Retail Relief if satisfying the above criteria.

ix) Splits, mergers and changes to existing hereditaments - 
The relief should be applied on a day to day basis using the formula set out 
above. A new hereditament created as a result of a split or merger during the 
financial year, or where there is a change of use, should be considered afresh 
for the relief on that day. 



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reforming business rates appeals 

 
Government response to consultation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                     July 2016 
                                                             Department for Communities and Local Government 

 

 



2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

© Crown copyright, 2016 

Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown. 

You may re-use this information (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium, 
under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this 
licence,http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3/ or write to the 
Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 4DU, or email: 
psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk. 

This document/publication is also available on our website at www.gov.uk/dclg 

If you have any enquiries regarding this document/publication, complete the form at 
http://forms.communities.gov.uk/ or write to us at: 

Department for Communities and Local Government 
Fry Building 
2 Marsham Street 
London  
SW1P 4DF 
Telephone: 030 3444 0000  

For all our latest news and updates follow us on Twitter: https://twitter.com/CommunitiesUK  

July 2016 

ISBN: 978-1-4098-4860-8

http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3/
mailto:psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk
http://www.gov.uk/dclg
http://forms.communities.gov.uk/
https://twitter.com/CommunitiesUK


 

 

Contents 

Introduction                             
4 

        
Government response to consultation issues                             

5 
  
Next steps                             

7 
  

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

4 
 

Introduction 
 
1. The Government is committed to delivering an improved business rates (non-domestic 

rates) appeals system.  There is widespread agreement that the current system is not 
working, especially for businesses.  Too many appeals are held up for too long, 
creating costs and uncertainty for businesses and for local authorities. 
 

2. The Department for Communities and Local Government’s (DCLG) “Check, challenge, 
appeal: Reforming business rates appeals” consultation sought views on proposals for 
a new three-stage approach to business rates appeals.  The reforms aim to provide a 
system which is easier to navigate, particularly for small businesses or unrepresented 
ratepayers1, with the emphasis on early engagement by all parties to reach a swift 
resolution.  By setting out their issues fully and clearly early on, ratepayers will help the 
Valuation Office Agency (VOA) to respond promptly, cases will be resolved at an 
earlier stage, and any refunds due will be paid quickly. 

 
3. The consultation closed on 4 January 2016 and we received 214 responses.  As part 

of the consultation process, six roundtable discussions were held with a range of 
stakeholders.  A summary of responses is published alongside this statement. 
 

4. The overwhelming majority of respondents recognised the need for change.  They also 
agreed the objectives of the reforms should be to put in place a swift, structured and 
transparent system, which promotes early engagement by all parties to resolve cases 
quickly.  This clearly shows that a reformed appeals system is necessary and it will be 
delivered as part of the VOA’s wider transformation programme to modernise services 
and reduce costs over time.  The modernisation of the appeals system is an essential 
component of this transformation.  
 

5. Responses from businesses and rating agents were however generally sceptical about 
the extent to which the proposals would achieve the aims of reform.  This scepticism is 
driven in part by their view that ratepayers want more information about the basis of 
their rating valuation at an earlier stage in the process than is currently the case.  
Respondents also raised concerns that the VOA will be unable to rise to the challenge 
of reform, perhaps because of available resources; concerns which will be addressed 
through the Agency’s transformation programme. 
 

6. Responses also raised concerns over the detail of the processes and the maximum 
length of time the full three-stage process could take if a case was not resolved early 
in the process.   Concerns were also raised about potential administrative burdens on 
business and the needs of small businesses in the process.  
 

7. The Government is grateful for the views shared during the consultation process and 
has carefully considered all views in developing this response.  This document now 
sets out decisions the Government has taken, as a basis for preparing draft 
regulations on appeals reform for consultation in the summer. 

 
 

                                            
1 ‘Ratepayers’ is used as a shorthand in this document for the different classes of people who can 
enter the Check, Challenge, Appeal process 

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/reforming-business-rates-appeals-check-challenge-appeal
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/reforming-business-rates-appeals-check-challenge-appeal


 

5 
 

Government response to consultation 
issues 

 
8. The Government shares the view of respondents that the availability of sufficient, 

tailored information, earlier than under the current system, will provide the basis for 
early and meaningful engagement between the VOA and ratepayers.  This is the key 
to resolving appeals in a more efficient manner and is at the heart of the package of 
incentives and requirements in these reforms.   
 

9. From Revaluation 2017 onwards, more property data will be available to ratepayers 
online than ever before; in addition to the detail published on “Summary Valuations”, a 
verified ratepayer will be able to log into an on-line account to view additional facts 
held by the VOA about the property, such as the age of the property and age of any 
refurbishment, provision of heating, lifts or air conditioning, that the VOA have relied on 
in reaching their valuation. 

 
10. The Government continues to take the view that ratepayers should initiate a Challenge 

by providing details about why it is being made, in order that the issues under dispute 
can be established early on.  This will allow the VOA to respond with a tailored 
package of information and will allow the VOA (and ultimately the Valuation Tribunal 
for England - VTE) to deploy resources more efficiently than it is able to do at present 
and thus provide an improved service.  The Government considers this can be 
achieved without imposing unrealistic burdens on ratepayers, including those who may 
be small businesses or unrepresented. 
 

11. Having regard to  the responses received, the Government therefore proposes to 
proceed on the following  basis: 

 
• a streamlined process will enable verified ratepayers to enter the Challenge stage 

immediately if they have confirmed, within the last 4 months, that property specific 
details held by the VOA are correct.  This confirmation will be made easily via an 
online account that enables the ratepayer to log on and confirm that facts relevant 
to their valuation, held by the VOA, are correct.  For the vast majority of ratepayers 
who can confirm the details are current and correct, we expect this will be a simple 
and swift element of the process 
  

• in some cases ratepayers will disagree with the facts held by the VOA and will offer 
an alternative at the Check stage. The VOA will aim to respond fully to the 
ratepayer’s alternative, in the great majority of such cases within 3 months.  The 
Government will initially maintain a statutory right for ratepayers to move directly to 
Challenge after 12 months even if the facts are not yet agreed with the VOA.  This 
will enable a ratepayer to move forward in the small minority of cases which cannot 
be resolved quickly and where an extension to the timescale has not been agreed, 
thus providing an important safeguard for ratepayers.   Performance levels and 
time limits will be reviewed as the new system beds in, with the aim of reducing 
them over time where possible 
 

• ratepayers considering challenging their rating list entry will be able to view, 
confirm or amend the property details held by the VOA as often as they wish using 
the new online account and the most recent confirmation or amendment will be the 
one taken forward to the Challenge stage if the ratepayer decides to do so 
 



 

6 
 

• ratepayers who enter the Challenge stage will need to provide: 
i. grounds for the Challenge 
ii. an alternative rating list entry 
iii. evidence or other relevant information and a statement explaining why that 

evidence or information  supports the proposed alternative rating list entry. 
 

In practice this will mean that the VOA will need the information that the ratepayer 
has relied on to make their Challenge.  This may be rental details, valuations of 
similar properties, photographs or other documents that they have access to and 
have used to help them make their case.  Wherever possible, the VOA will seek to 
amend the rating list entry at this point if the evidence presented shows the rating 
list entry was incorrect.  This means it is vital that ratepayers provide meaningful 
and complete information, which will help the VOA reach a view 
 

• if the VOA does not agree the alternative rating list entry proposed they will 
provide, as soon as practicable, tailored information and evidence that responds 
fully to the evidence and alternative rating list entry provided by the ratepayer.  
This, together with the information available at Revaluation 2017, will mean that 
ratepayers have access to much more information, much earlier in the process 
than under the current system 
 

• during the Challenge stage, the ratepayer will have opportunity to respond to any 
information and evidence that is put forward by the VOA  
 

• the statutory right for ratepayers to move from Challenge to Appeal to the VTE 
will remain at 18 months.  This will allow time for Challenges to be dealt with 
effectively and to resolve the more complex cases.  This is not a time limit or a 
target for resolving cases, but protection for ratepayers to move to Appeal in the 
minority of cases where the VOA might not have completed consideration of the 
issues.  The Government and the VOA fully expects the bulk of cases to be 
resolved well before this point.  Ratepayers may however agree to extend the 
time for VOA to consider their Challenge beyond the 18 month trigger point if 
they choose.  Performance levels and time limits will be reviewed as the new 
system beds in, with the aim of reducing them over time where possible 

 
• if an agreement has not been reached between the parties during the Challenge 

stage, the VOA will issue a decision letter setting out a summary of their 
decisions on outstanding matters, with the reasons for their decision.  This will 
formally end the Challenge stage and the ratepayer will have 4 months in which 
to lodge an appeal against the VOA’s decision should they wish to do so  
 

• in order to provide an incentive for full disclosure by both parties at the Challenge 
stage, and thus help ensure that only those cases on which there are still matters 
of dispute reach the VTE and do so in good order, the scope for parties to 
introduce new matters or evidence at Appeal will be constrained.  That is why it is 
important the ratepayer provides all the evidence they are relying on at the start 
of the Challenge stage 
 

• there will be no charges at Check or Challenge stage, where it is our expectation 
that the majority of cases will be resolved.  Ratepayers will only be charged fees 
at Appeals stage and where an appeal is successful the full fee will be refunded.  
We propose a maximum fee at the level of £300. This will increase the incentives 
for early and full engagement. It will also help to reduce the large number of 
speculative appeals which clog up the system for everyone else 



 

7 
 

 
• in line with other parts of the tax system penalties of up to £500 may be imposed 

where false information is carelessly, recklessly or knowingly provided during the 
Check or Challenge stages, with a right of appeal to VTE 

 
• small businesses will benefit from: 

• a fast track through the system 
• clear guidance which will help them navigate the system without 

professional support 
• lower levels of fees for making an appeal, which will be refunded if 

successful 
• lower levels of civil penalties for provision of false information. 

 
For the purposes of this process, the definition of ‘small businesses’ will be 
broadly aligned with that in the Companies Act 2006, namely those where two of 
the following apply – annual income or expenditure of not more than £10.2m, 
aggregate assets of not more than £5.1m, and not more than 50 employees 
 

• finally, in response to helpful and constructive proposals from business groups, 
the VOA will work with stakeholders to design and introduce a pre-Challenge 
clearance process.  This will allow groups of ratepayers in the same location – 
such as a high street or industrial estate – to provide the VOA with evidence 
outside the formal Challenge process regarding valuations in their area.  If after 
discussions, the VOA and ratepayers agree that the valuations used by the VOA 
in the specific area are incorrect then the individual businesses who were part of 
the pre-Challenge clearance process will then be able to provide a much simpler 
set of information and evidence at Challenge stage referring to the pre-Challenge 
clearance agreement to adopt what has been agreed. 
 
 

Next Steps 
 
12. The Government plans to draft regulations for consultation on this basis.  We are 

aware that there remain issues that need to be resolved, including the role of local 
authorities, and detail that still needs to be considered.  We will continue to work with 
the respondents to the consultation document to develop that detail up to and during 
the consultation on draft regulations.  We want to keep the dialogue open and 
welcome the contribution stakeholders have to make to ongoing policy development.  
We intend the reformed business rates appeals system to apply to the new rating list 
when it comes into effect on 1 April 2017. 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Board/Committee: POLICY AND ORGANISATION
Date of Meeting: 5 FEBRUARY 2019
Title: NEW POST OF NEIGHBOURHOOD 

OPERATIONS MANAGER
Author: HEAD OF HOUSING
Status: FOR DECISION

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to seek members’ approval to create a new post 
of Neighbourhood Operations Manager 

Recommendation

Members of the Policy and Organisation Board are recommended to approve 
the creation of a new post:

Title:       Neighbourhood Operations Manager
Grade:    12 (Subject to JEQ)

1 Background

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

In 2016, the Housing Service underwent a structural review. The 
final proposal dated March 2016 set out the opportunities and 
challenges for moving the service forward and detailed the guiding 
principles for continuous service improvement.

The current Head of Housing has been in post since June 2016 
and has responsibility for 11 (10 FTE) staff reporting directly to her 
and overall responsibility for 101 staff (84.5 FTE).

Under the current structure, direct operational management of the 
Neighbourhood Management Team is the responsibility of the 
Head of Housing.

The Neighbourhood Management Team is comprised of 
Neighbourhood Housing (including Leasehold/Right to Buy and 
Resident Involvement), Neighbourhood Services, Sheltered 
Housing, Business Support and Systems Administration. 

It is clear that, to implement the proposals set out in the review and 
to continue to move the service forward, the Head of Housing 
requires additional management support to deal with operational 
issues that flow from the Neighbourhood Management Team.

Support required to cope with demands from the Neighbourhood 
Management Team was recognised  in the review carried out in 
2016 and this has been provided on an informal basis by 
Portsmouth City Council (PCC) but this arrangement is due to end 
in March 2019. The proposal is to create a new post within the 

GBC establishment.

Agenda Item 8



1.7 Under the current structure, there is no formal deputy to act in the 
absence of the Head of Housing. 

2 Report

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

The creation of a Neighbourhood Operations Manager will reduce the 
number of direct reports to the Head of Housing and will release 
capacity allowing the Head of Housing to focus on the strategic 
direction of the service.

The post holder will have the relevant skills and expertise to deputise 
for the Head of Housing across all functions of the Housing Service

The post will add capacity and support to the existing Housing 
Management Team so that the service can respond more effectively 
to new demands and changes in legislation such as Universal Credit 
and the Homelessness Reduction Act

Management support is provided by the Head of Housing Options, 
PCC 1.25 days per week (0.25FTE) as part of the shared 
management arrangement, but the post holder is due to retire in April 
2019.This has provided the Head of Housing with an opportunity to 
review how the funding for this post is best used moving forward.

The Housing Revenue Account is budgeted to make a surplus in 
2019/20 even with increased funding for improvements to the 
Council’s Housing Stock. The funding for this post can come from 
existing budgets and has no additional cost implications to the 
Housing Services budget. The funding of this post from the 
establishment produces a saving of (£13,675) and is calculated as 
follows:

Current HRA Cost to GBC
PCC 
Management 
charge

Head of 
Housing 
Options
(FTE 0.25)

82% HRA Until 
April 
2019

£18,691

PCC Charge Operational 
Support 

100% HRA Until 
March 
2019

£59,181

Total current 
cost 

£77,872

Proposed HRA Cost to GBC
GBC staff cost for 
new post
(inc NI and 
Superannuation)

Neighbourhood 
Operations 
Manager

100% HRA £64,197

Cost to GBC (£13,675)



3 Risk Assessment

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

The Housing Service delivers a wide range of front-line services for 
the Council and has responsibility for the provision of a number of 
statutory functions. Housing options and council housing functions 
have a high local profile and face levels of unprecedented change. 

The Head of Housing must maintain a strategic focus to ensure 
services are delivered as efficiently as possible, remain compliant with 
changes in legislation and maximise opportunities to increase 
revenue.

If the current structure remains unchanged, the Head of Housing will 
be pulled into the day to day operational issues that flow from the 
Neighbourhood Management Team and will not have capacity to 
focus on strategies to improve and develop the overall service

The service does not have a deputy with delegated responsibility 
across the Housing Service to act in the absence of the Head of 
Housing

4 Conclusion

4.1

4.2

4.3

The effective delivery of the Housing Service is a key priority for the 
Council with HRA resources focussed on delivering efficient 
management of existing council-owned and leasehold properties

A key objective for the Housing Service is to acquire new affordable 
housing and look to build new social housing developments. The 
lifting of the cap on HRA borrowing means the Council can play a 
larger role in supplying much needed homes in the borough.

The provision of additional management resource would free up 
capacity for Head of Housing to focus on developing the service as 
outlined in the review and ensure the effective delivery of key 
objectives and priorities.

Financial Services comments: See 2.5 above
Legal Services comments:
Crime and Disorder:
Equality and Diversity: None
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:
Corporate Plan: No implications arising from this report
Risk Assessment: See 3.1 above
Background papers: None
Appendices/Enclosures:

Appendix ‘A’ Proposed structure chart
Report author/ Lead Officer: Julie Smith



This page is intentionally left blank



Housing Services Manager

Neighbourhood Operations Manager

Neighbourhood Services 
Manager

Neighbourhood 
Service Co-
Ordinator

Neighbourhood Service 
Officers 

Cleaners

Apprentice 
Neighbourhood Services 

Officer

Older Persons Services 
Manager

Senior Older 
Persons Support 

Officer

Older Persons Support 
Officers 

Community Older 
Persons Support 

Officers

Neighbourhood 
Managers

Housing Officers 

Neighbourhood 
Involvement Officer

RTB & Leasehold 
Officer

Buisness Support 
Team Leader

Business Support Officers

Property Services Manager

Principal 
Surveyors

Surveyors

Gazateer

Technical Officers

Apprentice Building 
Surveyor

Housing Needs and 
Advice Manager

Senior Housing 
Advisors

Housing Advisers

Accomodation and Lettings 
Manager

Lettings and 
Accomm

Team Leader

Hostel Officers

Accomm & 
Lettings Officers 

RAPS

Accomodation Income 
Recovery Officer

Accomm &
Lettings 
Officers

Policy and 
Performace Officer

Appendix A:  Proposed Structure Chart - Housing Service



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Board/Committee: P&O BOARD
Date of Meeting: 5th February 2019
Title: TUC Dying to Work Charter
Author:  Head of Human Resources
Status: amend as 
appropriate

FOR DECISION

Purpose

The purpose of the report is to consider whether Gosport Council should 
sign up to the TUC 'Dying to Work' charter and what additional actions, if 
any, it would need to carry out to comply with the charter. 

.

Recommendation

P&O Board is recommended to agree that:

i. Gosport should sign up to the TUC charter since the charter 
largely reflects our current practices.

ii. In meeting our commitment to the charter, continue the current 
practice of investigating with an eligible employee which option 
under the pension scheme would be most financially beneficial. In 
some cases, this could mean retiring the employee on grounds of 
ill-health where this is the best option for them.

iii. As part of the charter, state that under an organisational change 
process a member of staff with a terminal illness could still be 
made redundant. However, as with our current practice, 
redundancy will only be actioned once all other options have been 
exhausted

1. Background

1.1 The 'Dying to Work' charter  from the TUC is a public 
declaration of how an organisation will support an 
employee who has been diagnosed with a terminal illness, 
Gosport's current policies and practices are already in line 
with the fundamental principles of the 'Dying to Work' 
charter (Appendix A).

Agenda Item 9



     
1.2 The Charter requires organisations to "review sick pay and 

sickness absence procedures and include a specific 
statement that they will not dismiss any person with a 
terminal diagnosis because of their condition".  Whilst 
Gosport's absence management policy and practice is in 
line with the charter, there are some circumstances where 
the council could end someone's employment as a result of 
their diagnosis

    1.3 It is recognised that in certain circumstances depending on 
the pension scheme membership (LGPS, Teachers 
Pension, NHS), ending employment through ill-health may 
be more beneficial for the employee compared to the 
financial benefits received from 'death in service'.  Whilst 
we are unable to provide financial advice, the Payroll and 
Pensions manager is able to guide and assist an employee 
as to where they can find information on the financial 
impact of each option to them personally.  

1.4 The Council's Employee Assistance programme assists us 
in meeting the requirements of the Charter. 

1.5 HR provides training to managers on absence 
management and will incorporate a section in the training 
on how to manage those who are terminally ill. 

2. Other Local Authorities' Experience

2.1 Currently across the UK 81 different organsiations have 
signed up to the charter of which 25 are local authorities.  

2.2 Those contacted confirmed that the charter did not require 
major changes to their policies, although it may still be 
necessary to make someone redundant as part of an 
organisational change process. However they stated that 
they would exhaust all other options first, before they move 
to redundancy. They did not change or enhance their sick 
pay arrangements for those with a terminal diagnosis.



3. Reasons for recommendations

3.1 The council's current practices are already compliant with 
the principles of the charter, as shown in Appendix A.  

3.2 The charter will demonstrate the council's commitment to 
treating its terminally ill employees fairly. The council will 
also be publically recognised for this commitment, with a 
signing ceremony and photo opportunities.

3.3 The purpose of clarifying the council's stance is to establish 
clear expectations for those not eligible under any of the 
three pension schemes for ill-health retirement and death 
in service, and how redundancy issues will be approached 
in the context of the charter. 



Financial Services comments: There are no additional financial
implications arising directly upon the
Council from the recommendations
contained within this report.

Legal Services comments: The proposal largely reflects the current 
policies and is consistent with Gosport's 
current practices.  The adoption of the 
proposal would not materially fetter the 
available legal options when considering 
dismissal or a restructuring that could 
impact upon an employee. There are no 
obvious risks associated with the proposal.

Crime and Disorder: No implications rising from this report
Equality and Diversity: Current practices are already compliant 

with the principles of the charter, 
but signing up will demonstrate the 
council's commitment to treating its 
terminally ill employees fairly and the 
council will also be publically recognised 
for this commitment,

Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

No Implications rising from this report

Corporate Plan: No Implications rising from this report
Risk Assessment: Provide clear expectations for those not 

eligible under any of the three pension 
schemes for ill-health retirement and death 
in service, and how redundancy issues will 
be approached in the context of the 
charter. 

Background papers:
Appendices/Enclosures:

Appendix ‘A’ 5 Steps to the Charter

Report author/ Lead Officer: Jon Bell



 

 

5 Steps to the Charter 

S
te

p
 1

 

Check that your employer has not already signed up 
to the TUC Dying to Work charter 

The TUC Dying to Work charter is already protecting over half a million 
working people in the UK and this number is growing nearly every week. You 
can check to see if your employer has already signed up here. 

S
te

p
 2

 Involve your union 

Raise the campaign with your Trade Union branch and ask your rep to raise 
the charter with your employer. If your workplace has more than one 
recognised union then ensure their representatives are also involved in the 
discussions. 

S
te

p
 3

 

Encourage your employer to sign the voluntary 
charter 

Unions should be clear about what they want from their employer. Just 
getting a vague commitment is not enough. Union negotiators should seek 
agreement that their employer will:  
 
• Review sick pay and sickness absence procedures and include a 
specific statement that they will not dismiss any person with a terminal 
diagnosis because of their condition. 
• Ensure that that they have an Employee Assistance Programme that 
has the capacity and competency to provide support to any person with a 
terminal illness, including access to counselling and financial advice. 
• Provide training to line managers and all HR staff on dealing with 
terminal illness, including how to discuss future plans with any worker who 
has a diagnosis of a terminal illness, and on what adaptations to work 
arrangements that may be necessary. 
• Adopt the Dying to Work Charter and notify all employees that they 
have made the commitments contained in it 
 



S
te

p
 4

 
Inform the TUC 

Once the employer and the recognised unions are happy that the 
commitments within the charter have been met, please inform the TUC of 
your intention to sign using the contact details provided.  
 
In your correspondence, please include: 
 
• Dates of availability for a public signing ceremony 
• The logo of your organisation and union(s) signing the charter 
• The names of those signing the charter on behalf of the employer and 
union(s) 
• The names and quotes for draft press releases – The TUC will be 
happy to liaise with your organisation’s press department. 
• The number of workers to be covered by the Charter. We will add 
these to the national total 
• Confirmation that photos can to be taken at the event which the TUC 
can share on social media, the campaign website and other outlets 
 

S
te

p
 5

 

Sign the Charter 

The TUC will provide will provide a customised copy of the charter for the 
public signing ceremony which will be attended by a representative of the 
campaign. The TUC will also work with your internal press department to co-
ordinate press releases to generate media coverage in both the local and 
national press and broadcast media.  
 
After the signing, your organisation will have officially joined the growing 
number of employers from across the public and private sector which have 
made this important commitment to their employees. Your organisation’s 
details will be added to our website and the charter will be left with the 
employer to display as they see fit. 
 
 

 



Board/Committee: P&O BOARD
Date of Meeting: 5th February 2019
Title: Disability Confident Initiative
Author: Head of Human Resources
Status: amend as 
appropriate

FOR DECISION

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to advise P&O Board  about the Disability 
Confident standard, and seek members' approval to request accreditation 
under the scheme.

Recommendation

Members are recommended to:

 Seek immediate accreditation to be a Disability Confident 
Committed Employer as described in the sections below 

 Level 1: Disability Confident Committed Employer

1 Background

1.1 The Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) relaunched 
"Disability Confident" in summer 2016, an initiative originally 
launched in 2013 as a replacement for the previous "Two 
Ticks" positive action scheme.  

1.2 Over 7 million people (17.5%) of working age in the UK 
are disabled or have a health condition. Disability Confident 
encompasses a number of voluntary commitments to 
encourage employers to recruit, retain and develop disabled 
staff and those with a health condition, such as offering work 
experience opportunities and implementing flexible 
recruitment processes.  The scheme is intended to address 
the shortcomings of the previous Two Ticks initiative, which 
was criticised for not setting sufficiently rigorous standards for 
employers wishing to display the Two Ticks logo.

2   Aims and Objectives of Disability Confident

2.1 Through Disability Confident, the government is working with 

Agenda Item 10

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/disability-confident-campaign


employers to:

 challenge attitudes towards disability
 increase understanding of disability
 remove barriers to work
 ensure that disabled people have the opportunities to fulfil 

their potential and realise their aspirations

2.2 It is not the government's intention to mandate the 
employment of individuals with a disability.

2.3 The potential benefits to the council from becoming a 
Disability Confident employer (as advocated by the promoters 
of the scheme) are:

 drawing from the widest possible pool of talent
 securing high quality staff who are skilled, loyal and hard 

working
 saving time and money on the costs of recruitment and 

training by reducing staff turnover
 keeping valuable skills and experience
 reducing the levels and costs of sickness absences
 improving employee morale and commitment by 

demonstrating that all employees are treated fairly

2.4 More significantly, by building a reputation as a Disability 
Confident employer that actively seeks out and hires skilled 
disabled people, the Council will be helping to positively 
change attitudes, behaviors and cultures, not just in the 
immediate organisation but in its networks, supply chains and 
communities.

2.5 Signing up to the Disability Confident scheme has no direct 
cost.

3.0 How to become a Disability Confident employer

3.1 The scheme has 3 levels that have been designed to support 
interested organisations in becoming Disability Confident.  
Employers must complete each level before moving on to the 
next.  A list of local organisations that have signed up is 
attached as Appendix A.

3.2 Level 1: Disability Confident Committed Employer

To achieve this level, the council must:

 register its contact details
 sign up to the Disability Confident commitments 
 Identify at least one new thing that the council will do to 



make a difference for disabled people.  This could 
include, for example, offering work placements or 
supporting disabled people into apprenticeships.

The Disability Confident commitments are:

 Ensure our recruitment process is inclusive and 
accessible

 Communicate and promote vacancies openly

 Encourage applications from disabled people 

 Support any existing employee who acquires a disability 
or long term health condition, enabling them to stay in 
work

Upon signing up, the council will be sent:

 a certificate in recognition of the achievement
 a badge to use on the council's website and other 

materials for 12 months
 a self-assessment to assist becoming a Disability 

Confident Employer

3.3 Level 2: Disability Confident Employer

To become a Disability Confident employer, the council must 
self-assess against a set of statements grouped into 2 
themes:

 getting the right people for the business
 keeping and developing the people

The council will be able to get support with completing the 
self-assessment from existing Disability Confident Leaders, 
local disability organisations, Work Choice providers or 
network groups before submitting.

On submitting a satisfactory self-assessment, the council will 
be sent:

 a certificate in recognition of the achievement
 a badge to use on the website and other materials for 2 

years
 information to help becoming a Disability Confident 

Leader



3.4 Level 3: Disability Confident Leader

The final level, Disability Confident Leader, aims to encourage 
employers to take the commitment further by championing the 
agenda amongst partners, suppliers and other organisations.

The amount of additional work associated with becoming a 
Disability Confident Leader is mainly activities related to 
externally promoting the scheme.  

4.0 Recruitment Issues

4.1 Members' should note that, whilst Disability Confident 
encourages employers to go beyond their legal 
requirements, there is not a strict requirement to 
positively discriminate in favour of disabled people 
(which in any case is generally unlawful) or to guarantee 
an interview to disabled applicants (although many 
organisations do elect to do the latter where applicants 
meet the minimum requirements for a role).

4.2 The council recognises its duty to ensure that all 
recruitment and selection procedures are open, 
transparent and fair. All appointments are based on 
merit and in accordance with the Equal Opportunities in 
Employment Policy Statement.  

4.3 Guidance from the DWP and existing Disability 
Confident Leader organisations indicates that the council 
should make applicants aware that it is a member of this 
scheme (e.g. by using the logo on recruitment 
materials).  It should also be clear to candidates what 
additional help, support or adjustments are available to 
potential candidates with disabilities.  It will also be 
important to continually review recruitment processes 
and policies to ensure that any barriers that disabled 
people may experience when applying for jobs are 
identified and, as far as possible, removed.

5.0 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA)

5.1 A Equality Impact Screening Assessment has been 
completed.  The recommendation has a positive impact 
for Disability groups, and does not have a negative 
impact on any of the remaining protected characteristics 
described in the Equality Act 2010.



Financial Services comments: There is no significant cashable saving 
resulting from introduction of Disability 
Confident.  It can be expected that there 
will be additional employment costs 
associated with reasonable adjustments to 
the work station and equipment as well as 
the general workplace.  Some of these 
may be subject to Access to Work funding.

Legal Services comments: Positive discrimination is generally 
unlawful in the UK. For example, an 
employer recruiting a person because he 
or she has a relevant protected 
characteristic rather than because he or 
she is the best candidate would be 
committing discrimination under the 
Equality Act 2010.  

Otherwise there are no immediate legal 
implications arising from this report.

Crime and Disorder: No implications arising from this report.
Equality and Diversity: Demonstrate that the Council is committed 

to providing a fair recruitment process and 
remove barriers to work

Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

No implications arising from this report.

Corporate Plan: No implications arising from this report
Risk Assessment: The Council is an equal opportunity 

employer and the recommendation 
contained in this report, if approved, 
means that we will be able to draw from 
the widest possible pool of talent and 
secure and retain high quality staff.

Background papers:
Appendices/Enclosures:

Appendix ‘A’ Organisations with Disability Confident 
accreditation

Report author/ Lead Officer: Jon Bell



This page is intentionally left blank



Organisations in region with Disability Confident status Appendix A

Business name Town or city Sector DC level 

(Committed, Employer, Leader)

Chit Chats Fratton Hospitality, Leisure and Tourism Committed

Citizens Advice Portsmouth Portsmouth Voluntary, Charity & Social Enterprise Committed

Gunwharf Quays Portsmouth Retail/Sales Committed

Learning Links (Southern) Limited Portsmouth Voluntary, Charity & Social Enterprise Committed

Portsmouth City Council Portsmouth Administration/Office including Public sector Employer

The Roberts Centre Portsmouth Voluntary, Charity & Social Enterprise Committed

Toucan Diversity Training Limited Portsmouth Voluntary, Charity & Social Enterprise Leader

Caroline Dinenage MP Gosport Administration/Office including Public sector Committed

Citizens Advice Gosport Gosport Voluntary, Charity & Social Enterprise Committed

Doves Nursery Gosport Care/Childcare/Social Care Committed

Gosport Voluntary Action Gosport Voluntary, Charity & Social Enterprise Committed

Little Slice of Heaven Gosport Retail/Sales Committed

Lynx Clothing Gospor Manufacturing & Engineering Committed

Marvels and Meltdowns Gosport Care/Childcare/Social Care Committed

Pebbles Pre School Gosport Care/Childcare/Social Care Committed

Sue Ryder Gosport Gosport Voluntary, Charity & Social Enterprise Committed

Warren Bakery Gosport Retail/Sales Committed

Kestrels Tea and Cakery Lee on the Solent Retail/Sales Committed

Showcase Training Gosport Education / Teaching Committed

Silver Trowel Limited Fareham Education / Teaching Committed

Trinity Gateway Community Services Gosport Care/Childcare/Social Care Committed

Fareham College Fareham Education / Teaching Employer

Applied Driving Techniques Global Solutions Limited Fareham Customer service Committed
Autism Hampsire Whiteley Care/Childcare/Social Care Committed

Fusion People Whiteley Construction Committed

British Heart Foundation F&E Fareham Fareham Voluntary, Charity & Social Enterprise Committed



Community Action Fareham Fareham Voluntary, Charity & Social Enterprise Employer

Fareham Shopping Centre Fareham Retail/Sales Committed

Fareport Training Organisation Limited Fareham Education / Teaching Committed

Forces Support (Fareham) Fareham Voluntary, Charity & Social Enterprise Committed

Hilborne's Traditional Sweets Fareham Retail/Sales Committed

HSS Hire (Fareham) Fareham Construction Committed

Inspired B2B Marketing Fareham Contact Centres Committed

Just 4 Sofas Fareham Retail/Sales Committed

One Community Fareham Voluntary, Charity & Social Enterprise Committed

The Ironmaster Fareham Hospitality, Leisure and Tourism Committed

Mayfair Homecare Portsmouth Care/Childcare/Social Care Committed

The YOU Trust Portsmouth Voluntary, Charity & Social Enterprise Employer

Vivid Portsmouth Administration/Office including Public sector Employer

Community Empowerment Portsmouth Voluntary, Charity & Social Enterprise Committed

Audazzle Limited Portsmouth Arts and Media Employer

Portsmouth Disability Forum (PDF) Southsea Voluntary, Charity & Social Enterprise Employer

The Recycled Assets Company Limited Portsmouth Facilities Management Employer

Yellowday Training Limited Southsea Education / Teaching Committed

Bangerz & Brew Southsea Hospitality, Leisure and Tourism Committed

Home Coffee Southsea Portsmouth Hospitality, Leisure and Tourism Committed

Key Recruitment Limited Portsmouth Customer service Committed

Highbury College Portsmouth Education / Teaching Employer

Home Coffee Portsmouth Hospitality, Leisure and Tourism Committed

Kare Plus Portsmouth Portsmouth Health Committed

Mountjoy Limited Portsmouth Agriculture Employer

Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust Cosham Health Employer

SNB Consultancy Portsmouth Education / Teaching Committed

Havant & South Downs College Waterlooville Education / Teaching Employer

My Willows Waterlooville Care/Childcare/Social Care Committed

Rowans Hospice Waterlooville Voluntary, Charity & Social Enterprise Committed

Freddie's New & Preloved Limited Havant Retail/Sales Committed

Havant Borough and East Hampshire District CouncilsHavant Administration/Office including Public sector Employer

Havant Housing Association Havant Care/Childcare/Social Care Employer



Holly's Dog Grooming Havant Other Committed

Horizon Leisure Centres Havant Sports & Recreation Committed

Iceland Foods Havant Retail/Sales Committed

Intequal Havant Education / Teaching Committed

Lockheed Martin - RMS Havant Manufacturing & Engineering Committed

Meridian Shopping Centre Havant Facilities Management Committed

Park Community School Havant Education / Teaching Committed

Premier - Elly's Convenience Store Havant Retail/Sales Committed

Savers (Havant) Havant Retail/Sales Committed

Serocor Group Havant Recruitment Agencies Employer

WH Smith Havant Hampshire Retail/Sales Committed

Southampton City Council Southampton Administration/Office including Public sector Employer

Hampshire County Council Winchester Administration/Office including Public sector Committed

Winchester City Council Winchester Administration/Office including Public sector Employer

New Forest District Council Hampshire Administration/Office including Public sector Employer

Eastleigh Borough Council Eastleigh Administration/Office including Public sector Employer



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT
Screening Assessment Form 

Name of policy___/strategy___/function___ being assessed. Please  what it is.

Disability Confident Initiative

1. Is this policy, strategy or function new ___ or an existing___ one? Please  what it is.

1a.  Briefly describe the reasons for developing or reviewing this?
Eg: change in legislation or requirements, results of consultation, part of a regular review cycle, etc.

The Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) launched “Disability Confident” in summer 2016.  It is a standard which encompasses a 
number of voluntary commitments to encourage employers to recruit, retain and develop disabled staff and those with a health condition.

2a. Describe the main aim or purpose of this item? Who will it benefit? Why is it needed?

Disability Confident replaced the Two- Ticks- Positive about Disabled People Scheme- in 2013. The aim is to support disabled people 
and those with health conditions to find and stay in work by encouraging employers to create more inclusive work places and make the 
most of opportunities to employ disabled people.

The Council seeks accreditation under the scheme to demonstrate the its commitment to being an inclusive employer.
The Council will offer work experience opportunities where possible to those with a disability and we will implement flexible recruitment 
processes.



2

3a. The Public Sector Equality Duty is part of the Equality Act 2010. The Duty requires the Council to have due regard to the 
following three aims:  

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation;
 advance equal opportunities between people from different groups
 foster good relations between people from different groups.  

Having due regard means considering how this policy, strategy or function has or will advance equal opportunities for each of 
the protected groups below.   



3

3b  Identify how this item demonstrates due regard to the three aims above  for each of the protected groups below. 
 (For marriage and civil partnership, legislation requires  you only need to demonstrate how you would eliminate unlawful discrimination, 
harassment and victimisation)
Protected 
characteristic

This item demonstrates due regard 
by:

Describe any negative 
impact or potentially 
negative impact of this item 
for any group.  

  List data sources/ evidence 
used to assess impact and 
whether this item furthers 
the aims of the Equality 
Duty. 

Age
Removes barriers to work for those with 
a physical or mental impairment that are 
of working age

No negative impact

Disability It meets the specific needs of those with 
physical or mental impairment. It 
encourages participation amongst this 
group and promotes understanding 
through GBC as an inclusive employer.

No negative impact

Gender 
reassignment

No impact No impact

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership

No impact No impact

Pregnancy No impact No impact

Promoted by Department for 
Work and Pensions; Job 
Centre. 

Employment research has 
shown the employment rate for 
disabled people and those with 
a health condition have been 
significantly lower than for non-
disabled people for many 
years.

17.3% of people working age 
in the UK are disabled or have 
a health condition, but only 
11.4% of people in work are 
disabled or have a health 
condition.



4

and Maternity

Race (ethnic or  
national origin, 
colour, nationality)

No impact No impact

Religion or Belief 
(and lack of belief)

No impact No impact

Sex No impact No impact

Sexual Orientation No impact No impact

56% of employers said they 
see clear business benefits to 
employing people from 
disadvantaged groups… but a 
2013 study revealed only 8% 
of employers had recruited 
someone with a disability or 
long-term health condition in 
the previous year. 

The Disability Confident 
Scheme will further the aims of 
the Equality Duty by: 

 providing support and 
tools to employers to 
recruit and retain 
disabled staff and those 
with health conditions

 challenging 
misconceptions about  
employing people with a 
disability or health 
condition

 supporting employers to 
draw from the widest 
pool of potential talent 
and skills

The scheme is consistent 
with the Council’s 



5

statement of Commitment 
to Equality & Diversity

3c. Are there any other groups in addition to those above which could be impacted (e.g. socially or financially excluded) 
by this item?
Please   ___yes   ___ no



6

5. Do you have any additional comments? If so, please add.

6. Date of screening 15/1/2019 Officer(s) completing assessment  Cathy 
Oldfield

Section Date Approved 23/1/2019

7. Name of Section Head  Jon Bell Date review completed. 23/01/2019
8. Date submitted to E &D Lead officer Date review completed 16-01-19

Group This item demonstrates due regard by:
 

Describe any negative impact or potentially 
negative impact of this item for any group List data sources/ 

evidence used to assess 
impact and whether this 
item furthers the aims of 
the Equality Duty

         

4. Please Identify any further actions you will take resulting from this assessment. 

Monitoring will take place annually through analysis of recruitment and selection data.
Recruitment documents will require Disability Confident logo. HR Action
Action Officer Responsible Completion date
Report to P&O Board Jon Bell, Head of HR 5/2/2019
Monitoring of Impact of scheme Cathy Oldfield, Principal HR Officer Annually



7

16-01-19
E &D Lead officer Recommendation:

 This assessment form is incomplete and requires additional information for its review by EDSG.
_________________________________________________________________________________

This assessment has been successfully reviewed  with the following outcome:

     No major change – The assessment of this policy/strategy/function shows no potential for discrimination and the aims of
         the Equality Duty have been met.

 Adjust the policy/strategy or function – This item will meet the aims of the Equality Duty if actions identified in Sections 3 and 4 to 
remove barriers or to better advance equality are implemented.

      Continue the policy/strategy/function – There is some potential for adverse impact or missed opportunities to promote equality, 
          but no unlawful discrimination has been identified. Ensure effective equality monitoring is in place to regularly assess the actual  
          impact on different groups  

      Stop and Rethink – Adverse equality impacts have been identified/ may not be justified and have not been sufficiently mitigated.  
         Unlawful discrimination could be taking place. Do not adopt or continue until a full equality investigation has been completed.
          



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting of the board held on 21 November 2018
	Minutes

	6 FORMER COUNCILLOR PETER EDGAR MBE - HONORARY FREEMAN OF THE BOROUGH
	7 Business Rates Retail Discount
	Appendix  A Conditions for granting retail discount
	Reforming_business_rates_appeal_-_govt_response check challenge appeal
	Introduction
	Next Steps


	8 NEW POST OF NEIGHBOURHOOD OPERATIONS MANAGER
	Organisational Chart

	9 TUC Dying to Work Charter
	Appendix 1 -Dying to Work 5 Steps to the Charter

	10 Disability Confident Initiative
	Disability Confident  Employers - Appendix A
	EIA Screening Form - Disability Confident 1.19


